
METROPOLITAN STATE UNIVERSITY of DENVER 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Governance Committee 
Thursday, December 5, 2013 
9:30-11:00am – SSB 440A 

Student Success Building, 890 Auraria Parkway 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A. June 5, 2013 Governance Committee Minutes 

 

III. DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
A. Bylaws Amendments 
B. Election of Officers 
C. Ad hoc committees 

i. Nominating 
ii. Buildings and Grounds 

iii. Leadership Transition and Succession  
D. Significant State and Federal Higher Education Developments  

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 



Metropolitan State University of Denver  Agenda Item II.A. 
Board of Trustees Meeting  Page 1 of 3 
Governance Committee Meeting  Approval of Minutes 
Thursday, December 5, 2013 
 
 

METROPOLITAN STATE UNIVERSITY of DENVER 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Governance Committee Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, June 5, 2013 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

The Governance Committee Meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m. by Trustee Harris. She 
was joined by Chairman Cohen, Trustee Bookhardt, Trustee Carroll, Trustee Hanzlik, and 
Trustee Pogge. Faculty Trustee David Sullivan and Student Trustee Jesse Altum were also in 
attendance along with President Jordan, Board Secretary Loretta Martinez, and various faculty, 
administrators and staff.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The first order of business was the approval of the April 3, 2013 Governance Committee 
Minutes. Trustee Pogge moved, with a second by Trustee Harris. The motion was unanimously 
approved.  

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. 2013-2014 Meeting Schedule. Trustee Harris explained three scheduling options were 
discussed at the April 3, 2013 governance committee meeting. Of those three, two options are 
being presented for final consideration. Chair Cohen explained that the Board currently has a 
Wednesday/Thursday schedule but the Wednesday committee meetings conflict with Faculty 
Senate meetings. One of the options discussed in April included an all-day “Friday” meeting; 
meaning, committee meetings in the morning with the public meeting in the afternoon. This was 
a less favorable option since a) most Trustees found it difficult to dedicate a full work day and b) 
most Trustees felt a Friday would be best served if it was a half day at max—due to Trustee 
business travel and/or weekend plans. 
 
Accordingly, the two final options are: a) half day Thursday (committee meetings – 7:30am-
12:30pm) and half day Friday (public meeting – 7:30am-12:00pm) or b) all day Thursday. 
Secretary Martinez added that either schedule would be a reduction in meetings; from 5 business 
meetings plus a retreat (5+1) to 4 business meetings plus a retreat (4+1). In addition, the 
meetings would be scheduled during months where there is an institutional need; such as in the 
Spring when we need to approve budget and tenure items. The proposed 4+1 schedule includes 
meetings in December, April, May, June with a Retreat in September. This creates a significant 
amount of downtime between December and April which happens to be the legislative season so 
we have plugged in a special work session in February that can be cancelled if there is no 
business need.   
 

Page 1 of 28



Metropolitan State University of Denver  Agenda Item II.A. 
Board of Trustees Meeting  Page 2 of 3 
Governance Committee Meeting  Approval of Minutes 
Thursday, December 5, 2013 
 
 
The consensus was to recommend option A to the Board. Trustee Harris requested a motion. 
Trustee Pogge moved, with a second by Trustee Harris. The motion was unanimously 
approved.  

B. Retreat Planning. Trustee Harris suggested that an email be sent to the Board with a 
reminder to bring their calendars to the public meeting—for the purpose of setting the Retreat 
dates. The dates that are currently being considered are September 19-20, 2013. Trustee Harris 
asked if there were any burning topics that should be included on the Retreat agenda. Chair 
Cohen offered succession planning for the Board, President Jordan and leadership team; 
academic performance—namely the dashboard and strategic plan. President Jordan offered debt 
capacity and themed housing project and mentioned that a number of themes that center around 
increasing MSU Denver’s retention rate have been discussed in recent weeks; such as student 
success and international students. Trustee Hanzlik requested that the Board discuss graduate 
programs in terms of “where are we now and where do we need to be.” Provost Golich also 
mentioned educational quality.  

Chair Cohen recommended that the agenda highlight 3-4 key initiatives that add value and help 
move the institution forward; further explaining that last year there were too many topics and not 
enough time to discuss any topic in depth.    

Secretary Martinez explained that in the past, she and President Jordan have worked with Board 
leadership to craft the Retreat agenda. She asked whether this practice would continue or 
whether the governance committee wished to be involved in the planning. It was the consensus 
of the Board to stay with the current practice. The Board and leadership team were asked to 
forward any additional topics for consideration to President Jordan, Secretary Martinez, Chair 
Cohen and Vice Chair Lucero. It was also the consensus of the Board that the Retreat location is 
both “local and convenient” or that an overnight stay be incorporated if Trustees are expected to 
drive a fair distance. Trustee Harris added that a local and convenient location can be distracting 
and further explained that the Castle Rock location (2 years ago) was very inconvenient as 
Trustees had to drive back and forth.     

C. Officer Election. Secretary Martinez explained that the Board has to take action on the 
Treasurer during the business meeting in light of Natalie Lute’s resignation and further explained 
the Board can opt not to make any additional changes if they wish.  

D. Succession Planning. Trustee Harris expressed her concern with the Boards current term 
expirations; in light of Chair Cohen’s “chairman” term expiring December 31, 2013 and Vice 
Chair Lucero’s “board” term expiring December 31, 2014 which doesn’t give her enough time to 
complete a “chair” term; presuming she is elected the next chair. Additionally, there would not 
be enough continuity to move the Board forward, in light of the other Board expirations which 
Secretary Martinez explained is 3 years according to state statutes.          

 

Page 2 of 28



Metropolitan State University of Denver  Agenda Item II.A. 
Board of Trustees Meeting  Page 3 of 3 
Governance Committee Meeting  Approval of Minutes 
Thursday, December 5, 2013 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  

Trustee Harris read the Trustees into Executive Session at 2:51 p.m., and asked for a motion. 
The motion was made and seconded and unanimously approved.  

ADJOURNMENT 

Trustee Harris officially adjourned the meeting at 3:09 p.m. 

Page 3 of 28



AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Bylaw Amendments 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
As part of the discussion at the Board’s annual retreat in 2013, the Board determined that it 
was important to make certain changes to the Bylaws to effectuate the Board’s wishes 
concerning Board leadership positions and succession. In accordance with Article XII of Bylaws, 
the Bylaws may be amended at any meeting of the Board by majority vote so long as written notice 
is given to each Board member prior to the meeting at which such amendments are to be considered. 
 
ANALYSIS: 

 
The attached revised Bylaws were developed by the Governance Committee in consultation 
with the General Counsel's office.  A redlined document is  attached which details the 
recommended changes in the areas of Board leadership positions and their terms, including 
length and timing as well as additional changes to the current committee structure.   

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The Governance Committee recommends approval of the attached revised Bylaws, effective 
December 6, 2013. 

 
 

 

Metropolitan State University of Denver 
Board of Trustees Meeting 
Governance Committee Meeting 
Thursday, December 5, 2013 

Agenda Item III.A. 
Page 1 of 9 

Action Item 
 

Page 4 of 28



BYLAWS of the Board of Trustees 
Metropolitan State University of Denver 

 
ARTICLE I 

 
AUTHORITY AND POWERS 

 
Colorado law vests the supervision and control of Metropolitan State University of Denver in the 
Board of Trustees.  The University is a body corporate of the State of Colorado. 
 

A. Authority and Powers 
 
As provided by section 23-54-101, C.R.S., et seq., the Board has full authority and 
responsibility for the governance of the University.  The Board has such powers, rights, 
and privileges as are granted to it by Colorado law, including, but not limited to, suing 
and being sued; taking and holding personal property and real estate; contracting and 
being contracted with; selling, leasing, or exchanging real property; controlling and 
directing all monies received by it; authorizing revenue bonds and other lawful financial 
transactions to raise money; and determining personnel matters.   
 

B. Delegation 
 
Except for powers that are legislative or judicial in nature, the Board may delegate 
authority to perform such duties as the Board deems proper and necessary.   

 
ARTICLE II 

 
BOARD MEMBERSHIP 

 
The Board includes eleven statutory members, consisting of nine voting members and two non-
voting advisory members, who shall have such qualifications, and subscribe to the oath, as 
prescribed by law.  In addition, pursuant to Board policy, the Board includes one alumni 
representative who serves as a non-voting advisory member. 
 

A. Voting Members 
 
The voting members are appointed by the Governor of the State of Colorado, with the 
consent of the State Senate, for terms of up to four years expiring on December 31 of the 
third calendar year following the calendar year in which the voting member is 
appointed.  A vacancy in the unexpired term of a voting member shall be filled by 
appointment of the Governor for the unexpired term. 

 
B. Advisory Members 

 
Advisory members shall not vote on matters before the Board, nor shall they attend 
executive sessions of the Board.  Advisory members shall include one full-time member 

Metropolitan State University of Denver 
Board of Trustees Meeting 
Governance Committee Meeting 
Thursday, December 5, 2013 

Agenda Item III.A. 
Page 2 of 9 

Action Item 
 

Page 5 of 28



of the University’s teaching faculty at large, elected by the faculty at large; one full-time 
junior or senior University student, who has been a Colorado resident for at least three 
years immediately prior to election by the student body at large; and one alumnus of the 
University, who shall serve as an alumni representative.  A vacancy in an unexpired term 
of an advisory member shall be filled by election for the unexpired term.  Advisory 
members shall serve for a term of one year expiring June 30.   

 
ARTICLE III 

 
OFFICERS 

 
The officers of the Board include the Chair, Vice Chair, Treasurer, and Secretary.  Such officers 
shall be elected by a majority of a duly constituted quorum of the Board. 
 

A. Election 
 
Election of officers shall take place at the annual Board meeting.  The Chair and Vice 
Chair shall hold office for a period of two one calendar years until their successors are 
elected.  The Secretary and Treasurer shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board.   
 

B. Removal 
 
The Board may remove any of its officers whenever in its judgment the best interests of 
the Board will be served thereby. 
 

C. Chair 
 
The Chair shall be a member of the Board.  The Chair shall preside at meetings of the 
Board and shall sign contracts and documents required to be executed by the Board.  The 
Chair shall appoint members of the Board to committees and as representatives to other 
bodies.  The Chair shall also perform such additional tasks as may be necessary to 
implement actions approved or taken by the Board.  The Chair also shall serve as Past 
Chair for one year after the term has ended to facilitate the transition to new Board 
leadership.   

 
D. Vice Chair 

 
The Vice Chair shall be a member of the Board.  The Vice Chair shall, in the absence of 
the Chair, perform the duties of the Chair.  The Vice Chair shall also serve as the Chair of 
the Presidential Evaluation Committee. 
 

E. Secretary 
 
The Secretary shall not be a m ember of the Board.  T he Secretary shall make 
certifications on be half of the Board and perform such other duties as are normally 
performed by the Secretary of a public entity, and those which may be assigned by the 

Metropolitan State University of Denver 
Board of Trustees Meeting 
Governance Committee Meeting 
Thursday, December 5, 2013 

Agenda Item III.A. 
Page 3 of 9 

Action Item 
 

Page 6 of 28



Board.  The Secretary shall cause all notices to be sent that may be required by these 
Bylaws and the law.  The Secretary shall also cause a record to be kept and maintained of 
all actions, proceedings, and policies of the Board.  
 

F. Treasurer 
 
The Treasurer shall not be a member of the Board.  The Treasurer shall cause statements 
of the financial condition of the Board and other such other financial documents as may 
be requested by the Board to be prepared, compiled, and provided to the Board. 

 
G. Assistants 

 
The Board may appoint such assistants as it deems necessary to accomplish the duties of 
the officers of the Board.   
 

H. Vacancies 
 
In the event of a vacancy in any office of the Board, a successor shall be elected by a 
majority of a duly constituted quorum of the Board to serve for the period of the 
unexpired term. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

 
MEETINGS 

 
A. Annual Meeting 

 
The annual meeting of the Board shall be held in DecemberJune of each year or at such 
time and place as may be designated by the Board by resolution.  The annual meeting 
shall be for the purpose of electing officers and the transaction of other business. 
 

B. Regular Meetings  
 
Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at such time and place as established yearly 
by resolution of the Board. 
 

C. Special Meetings   
 
The Board Chair may call special meetings of the Board at any time, and shall do so upon 
the written request of a majority of the Board. 

 
D. Committee Meetings   

 
A Committee Chair may call meetings at such time and place as is necessary to discharge 
committee duties. 

  

Metropolitan State University of Denver 
Board of Trustees Meeting 
Governance Committee Meeting 
Thursday, December 5, 2013 

Agenda Item III.A. 
Page 4 of 9 

Action Item 
 

Page 7 of 28



E. Notices   
 
Notice of the time, place, and agenda of all meetings of the Board and any of its 
committees shall be given in accordance with the Colorado Open Meetings Law.   

 
F. Agendas 

 
No less than five days before the annual meeting or any regular meeting, an agenda 
setting forth the matters to be considered at the meeting shall be sent to Board 
members.  An agenda for any special meeting or committee meeting shall be sent to 
Board members as early as is practicable.  
 

G. Records of Meetings 
 
In accordance with the Colorado Open Meetings Law, a recording and minutes shall be 
kept of all Board and committee meetings, with the exception of certain matters discussed 
in executive session.  
 

H. Presence of Members at Meetings   
 
Board members may attend meetings by telephone.  Meetings may be held by telephone, 
video conferencing, or other forms of electronic communication. 

 
I. Motions and Seconding 

 
All members of the Board may make and second motions. 
  

J. Voting  
 
Only voting members of the Board may vote on actions before the Board.  Only members 
of a committee may vote on actions before committees.  In extraordinary circumstances, 
a Board member who is unable to attend may vote by written proxy as to a specific 
question. 
 

K. Executive Session 
 
Upon a two-thirds vote of the voting members, an executive session may be held to 
discuss matters as permitted by the Colorado Open Meetings Law. 
 

L. Adjournment 
   
Any meeting may be adjourned and its business continued to an appointed day by a vote 
of the majority of the voting members present even though there may be less than a 
quorum. 

  

Metropolitan State University of Denver 
Board of Trustees Meeting 
Governance Committee Meeting 
Thursday, December 5, 2013 

Agenda Item III.A. 
Page 5 of 9 

Action Item 
 

Page 8 of 28



M. Rules of Procedure 
 
To the extent a meeting procedure is not addressed by these Bylaws or the law, the Board 
and its committees may consult ROBERT'S RULES OF ORDER for guidance. 

 
ARTICLE V 

 
EXERCISE OF POWERS 

 
Official action of the Board or recommendations of any committee shall occur only in open 
session at meetings duly called and held at which a quorum is present.  Matters coming before 
the Board or its committees at meetings shall be determined by a majority of the voting members 
who are present. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
 

QUORUM 
 

A quorum of the Board shall be a majority of its voting members.  A quorum of any committee 
of the Board shall be a majority of its voting members.  
 

ARTICLE VII 
 

COMMITTEES AND OTHER BODIES 
 

The Board shall have the committees described in these Bylaws and may create ad hoc 
committees as needed.  Formal actions of all committees shall be limited to recommendations 
made to the entire Board and shall in no w ay bind the Board.  Standing Ccommittees of the 
Board include: 
 

A. Academic and Student Affairs Committee 
 
The purpose of the Academic and Student Affairs Committee is to review and make 
recommendations to the Board regarding academic and student issues, including but not 
limited to the addition of new academic requirements, programs, degrees, majors, and 
fees, significant changes in policies, and other areas essential to the academic endeavor of 
the University and the welfare of its students.  T he Provost and Vice President for 
Academic Affairs shall serve as staff to the committee. 
 

B. Finance Committee 
 
The purpose of the Finance Committee is to review and make recommendations 
regarding the University’s finances and budget and significant changes thereto, including 
but not limited to setting annual budget parameters, tuition rates, salary rates, financial 
aid, parameters for issuance of debt, and other areas essential to the fiscal soundness of 
the University.  The Finance Committee also serves as the Board’s audit committee and 

Metropolitan State University of Denver 
Board of Trustees Meeting 
Governance Committee Meeting 
Thursday, December 5, 2013 

Agenda Item III.A. 
Page 6 of 9 

Action Item 
 

Page 9 of 28



shall review annually and report to the Board any material issues or findings pertaining to 
the University’s annual audit or any significant interim audit or risk management issues.  
The Vice President for Administration, Finance and Facilities/Treasurer shall serve as 
staff to the committee. 
 

C. Board Governance Committee 
 
The purpose of the Board Governance Committee is to review and make 
recommendations to the Board regarding Board operations and institutional governance, 
including but not limited to Board policies, these Bylaws, Board meetings, retreats and 
orientation, the Board budget, nomination of prospective Board membersrecords 
management and retention, technology, materials and communications, website, staffing, 
budget, orientation, and other policy mattersareas essential to effective operation of the 
Board.  The General Counsel/Secretary shall serve as staff to the committee.   
 

D. Presidential Executivevaluation Committee 
 
The purpose of the Presidential Executivevaluation Committee is to take necessary 
actions when the Board is not in session, review the President’s performance per the 
requirements of the employment contract and Board policies, report its findings to the 
Board, and make recommendations to the Board regarding the terms and conditions of 
the President’s employment and compensation.  The Committee may evaluate other 
appointees or individuals as needed.  The Committee shall have the full power of the 
Board in between meetings of the Board except for the hiring or termination of the 
President and shall report its actions to the Board at its next meeting. The membership of 
the Committee shall be the Chair, Vice-Chair, Past Chair and up to two of the Chairs of 
the standing committees of the Board as designated by the Chair of the Board.  The 
President and General Counsel/Secretary shall serve as staff to the committee.   

 
In addition to serving on committees, Board members also serve on the governing boards of other bodies.  
These other bodies include: 
 

A. Auraria Higher Education Center  
 

The purpose of this enterprise is to support the University, Community College of Denver, and 
the University of Colorado Denver and to facilitate the achievement of their goals and objectives 
on the Auraria campus.   

 
B. Metropolitan State University College of Denver Foundation, Inc.  
 

The purpose of this nonprofit, direct-support corporation is to promote the development and 
general welfare of the University by receiving, investing, and administering private support. 

  

Metropolitan State University of Denver 
Board of Trustees Meeting 
Governance Committee Meeting 
Thursday, December 5, 2013 

Agenda Item III.A. 
Page 7 of 9 

Action Item 
 

Page 10 of 28



 

C. HLC@Metro, Inc.  
  

The purpose this special purpose corporation is to own the hotel and hospitality learning center 
and provide for its financing, construction, operation, and management.   
 

D. MSCD Roadrunner Recovery and Reinvestment Act Finance Authority 
 

The purpose of this finance authority is to issue bonds necessary to finance the hotel and 
hospitality learning center project and loan the proceeds to HLC@Metro, Inc.  This finance 
authority is also available for the financing of future projects. 

 
ARTICLE VIII 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
All decisions of the Board and its members must be made solely on t he basis of a desire to 
promote the best interests of the University.  A conflict of interest exists when a Board member 
has or represents interests that may compete with or be adverse to those of the Board and the 
University.  A conflict of interest exists not only when there is any benefit, direct or indirect, 
received by such Board members or their affiliates, in connection with the official actions of the 
Board and University, but also when the Board or University interests are, or could be, adversely 
affected by a conflict of interest or perception or appearance of a conflict.  Although Board 
members may have allegiances to and associations with other outside interests, their paramount 
fiduciary obligation is to serve the best interests of the Board and the University.  All conflicts of 
interest must be fully disclosed and the interested Board member shall refrain from participation 
in and consideration of the proposed matter. 
 
Each Board member shall maintain on file a statement with the Secretary identifying:  all business or 
other undertakings in which such Board member has a direct or substantial financial interest; all contracts 
and/or contract proposals with the University; or, that to the best or the Board member’s knowledge after 
diligent inquiry, no such financial interests exist. 
 

ARTICLE IX 
 

INDEMNIFICATION 
 

The University shall indemnify any Board member who is a party to any threatened, pending or 
completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative by 
reason of service as a Board member against expenses and judgments if the person acted in good 
faith and in a manner reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the interests of the 
University, and with respect to any criminal action or proceedings, had no reasonable cause to 
believe the conduct was unlawful. 
  

Metropolitan State University of Denver 
Board of Trustees Meeting 
Governance Committee Meeting 
Thursday, December 5, 2013 

Agenda Item III.A. 
Page 8 of 9 

Action Item 
 

Page 11 of 28



 
 

ARTICLE X 
 

EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT 
 

Board members may be reimbursed for reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in the 
performance of Board duties. 
 

ARTICLE XI 
 

NECESSARY POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 

The Board has the responsibility and authority to promulgate Board policy by resolution or 
otherwise.   
 

ARTICLE XII 
 

AMENDMENT AND REPEAL OF BYLAWS 
 

These Bylaws may be amended or repealed, consistent with the law, at any meeting of the Board 
by majority vote, so long as written notice is given to each Board member prior to the meeting at 
which such amendment or repeal is to be considered. 
 

Metropolitan State University of Denver 
Board of Trustees Meeting 
Governance Committee Meeting 
Thursday, December 5, 2013 

Agenda Item III.A. 
Page 9 of 9 

Action Item 
 

Page 12 of 28



Metropolitan State University of Denver  Agenda Item III.B.  
Board of Trustees Meeting  Page 1 of 1 
Governance Committee Meeting  Discussion Item 
Thursday, December 5, 2013 
   
AGENDA ITEM:  Nomination and Election of Board Officers  

 

BACKGROUND: 

Pursuant to Article III, Section A, of the Bylaws of the Board of Trustees, officers of the Board 
shall be elected at the annual meeting of the Board. All officers shall be elected by a vote of the 
majority of a duly constituted quorum of the Board and shall serve a two year term commencing 
at the end of this business meeting. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Nominations shall be taken from the floor for the positions of Chair and Vice-Chair. 

Page 13 of 28



Metropolitan State University of Denver  Agenda Item III.D. 
Board of Trustees Meeting  Page 1 of 15 
Governance Committee Meeting  Discussion Item 
Thursday, December 5, 2013 
 

Significant State and Federal Higher Education Developments 

 President Obama’s Plan to make College More Affordable: A Better Bargain for the Middle 
Class 
o Tie financial aid to college performance, starting with publishing new college ratings before 

the 2015 school year 
o The new ratings will be based on access, affordability, and outcomes 
o Challenge states to fund public colleges based on performance 
o Hold students and colleges receiving student aid responsible for making progress toward a 

degree 
o Help ensure borrowers can afford their federal student loan debt by allowing all borrowers 

to cap their payments at 10 percent of their monthly income 
o Promote innovation and competition in the higher education marketplace by 

demonstrating that new approaches can improve learning and reduce costs.   
 Higher Education Reauthorization (HEA) re-authorization hearings being conducted by the 

Senate Committee on Heath, Education, Labor and Pensions ( HELP) 
o Roles of the state, federal government and accreditors 
o College affordability 
o Increasing quality in higher education 
o Student access 
o Innovative approaches to improving student success 
o Financial aid 
o Teacher preparation programs 

 University and College Board Members found exempt from oversight rules pertaining to 
Municipal Advisors 

 FY 2014 Direct pay Sequester Reduction is 7.2%, a lower percentage reduction than the 2013 
8.7% reduction on the original 35% subsidy for Build America Bonds  

 24.9 Million Dollar Award from U.S. Department of Labor to Community Colleges for Innovative 
Training Programs--MSU Denver receives $1,958,663 
 

 Governor Hickenlooper’s proposed allocation of an additional $100 million for state higher 
education and commensurate tuition increase constraints 

Page 14 of 28



Page 15 of 28



Page 16 of 28



Page 17 of 28



Page 18 of 28



Page 19 of 28



Page 20 of 28



Page 21 of 28



Page 22 of 28



Page 23 of 28



Page 24 of 28



Page 25 of 28



Page 26 of 28



Page 27 of 28



Page 28 of 28


	120513 Governance Committee Agenda
	060513 Governance Committee minutes v2
	III.A. Governance Action Item Bylaws 120513 v2
	BYLAWS of the Board of Trustees
	Metropolitan State University of Denver
	ARTICLE I
	AUTHORITY AND POWERS
	ARTICLE II
	BOARD MEMBERSHIP
	ARTICLE III
	OFFICERS
	ARTICLE IV
	MEETINGS
	ARTICLE V
	EXERCISE OF POWERS
	ARTICLE VI
	QUORUM
	ARTICLE VII
	COMMITTEES AND OTHER BODIES
	In addition to serving on committees, Board members also serve on the governing boards of other bodies.  These other bodies include:
	A. Auraria Higher Education Center
	The purpose of this enterprise is to support the University, Community College of Denver, and the University of Colorado Denver and to facilitate the achievement of their goals and objectives on the Auraria campus.
	B. Metropolitan State University College of Denver Foundation, Inc.
	The purpose of this nonprofit, direct-support corporation is to promote the development and general welfare of the University by receiving, investing, and administering private support.
	C. HLC@Metro, Inc.
	The purpose this special purpose corporation is to own the hotel and hospitality learning center and provide for its financing, construction, operation, and management.
	D. MSCD Roadrunner Recovery and Reinvestment Act Finance Authority
	The purpose of this finance authority is to issue bonds necessary to finance the hotel and hospitality learning center project and loan the proceeds to HLC@Metro, Inc.  This finance authority is also available for the financing of future projects.
	ARTICLE VIII
	CONFLICT OF INTEREST
	ARTICLE IX
	INDEMNIFICATION
	ARTICLE X
	EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT
	ARTICLE XI
	NECESSARY POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
	ARTICLE XII
	AMENDMENT AND REPEAL OF BYLAWS

	IV.A.  Election of officers
	IV.C.1 Significant State and Federal Higher Education Developments
	IV.C.2 significant state and fed ed dev
	III.A. Bylaws COMBINED FILE.pdf
	VI.L.i.1 Governance Action Item Bylaws 120513 v2
	VI.F.L.i.2 amendedbylaws102513 (Autosaved)
	BYLAWS of the Board of Trustees
	Metropolitan State University of Denver
	ARTICLE I
	AUTHORITY AND POWERS
	ARTICLE II
	BOARD MEMBERSHIP
	ARTICLE III
	OFFICERS
	ARTICLE IV
	MEETINGS
	ARTICLE V
	EXERCISE OF POWERS
	ARTICLE VI
	QUORUM
	ARTICLE VII
	COMMITTEES AND OTHER BODIES
	In addition to serving on committees, Board members also serve on the governing boards of other bodies.  These other bodies include:
	A. Auraria Higher Education Center
	The purpose of this enterprise is to support the University, Community College of Denver, and the University of Colorado Denver and to facilitate the achievement of their goals and objectives on the Auraria campus.
	B. Metropolitan State University College of Denver Foundation, Inc.
	The purpose of this nonprofit, direct-support corporation is to promote the development and general welfare of the University by receiving, investing, and administering private support.
	C. HLC@Metro, Inc.
	The purpose this special purpose corporation is to own the hotel and hospitality learning center and provide for its financing, construction, operation, and management.
	D. MSCD Roadrunner Recovery and Reinvestment Act Finance Authority
	The purpose of this finance authority is to issue bonds necessary to finance the hotel and hospitality learning center project and loan the proceeds to HLC@Metro, Inc.  This finance authority is also available for the financing of future projects.
	ARTICLE VIII
	CONFLICT OF INTEREST
	ARTICLE IX
	INDEMNIFICATION
	ARTICLE X
	EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT
	ARTICLE XI
	NECESSARY POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
	ARTICLE XII
	AMENDMENT AND REPEAL OF BYLAWS





